

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SIXTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2001

355E0789

SENATE BILL NO. 225

Introduced by: Senators Everist and Volesky

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise certain provisions relating to insurance taxes, cash
2 surrender values of insurances policies, and the payment of insurance benefits.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 10-44-2 be amended to read as follows:

5 10-44-2. Any company doing insurance business in this state shall pay a tax at the rates
6 specified in this section. The tax shall be paid to the Division of Insurance at the time the
7 company files its annual statement, or, if no annual statement is required, then before March first
8 of each year.

9 If, during the previous year, a company paid more than five thousand dollars in premium
10 taxes in this state, the company shall submit payments equal to one-quarter of the previous year's
11 premium taxes to the Division of Insurance on April thirtieth, July thirty-first, October
12 thirty-first, and January thirty-first. The quarterly payments shall be credited against the amount
13 due from the company at the time the company files its annual statement, or if no annual
14 statement is required, then on March first of each year. The director of the Division of Insurance
15 may waive the requirement in writing for quarterly payments or reduce the amount of deposit

1 if the director finds the requirement would impose an undue premium tax on a company because
2 of a significant decline in sales within the state. If the sum of the quarterly payments exceeds the
3 total taxes due, the director shall credit the overpayment against subsequent amounts due or, if
4 requested in writing at the time the company files its annual statement, refund the overpayment
5 to the company. If the overpayment cannot be credited, there is excess remaining after the credit
6 is taken on the annual statement, or the refund is not requested, the division may refund the
7 amount overpaid by May first of the following year. The rates are:

8 (1) On each domestic company, ~~two and one-half percent of premiums and one and~~
9 ~~one-fourth percent of the consideration for annuity contracts~~ the rate shall be
10 computed as follows:

11 (a) Two and one-half percent of premiums for a life policy on the first one hundred
12 thousand dollars of premium, and eight one-hundredths of a percent for
13 premiums on life policies exceeding one hundred thousand dollars; and

14 (b) One and one-fourth percent of the consideration for annuity contracts on the
15 first five hundred thousand dollars of consideration for annuity contracts, and
16 eight one-hundredths of a percent for consideration on annuity contracts
17 exceeding five hundred thousand dollars.

18 The tax also applies to premiums for insurance written on individuals residing outside
19 this state or property located outside this state if no comparable tax is paid by the
20 direct writing company to any other appropriate taxing authority. However, the tax
21 applies only to premiums for insurance written after July 1, 1980, on individuals
22 residing outside of the United States;

23 (2) On each foreign company, ~~two~~ the rate shall be computed as follows:

24 (a) Two and one-half percent of premiums, and one for a life policy on the first

1 one hundred thousand dollars of premium, and eight one-hundredths of a
2 percent for premiums on life policies exceeding one hundred thousand dollars;

3 and

4 **(b)** One and one-fourth percent of the consideration for annuity contracts on the
5 first five hundred thousand dollars of consideration for annuity contracts, and
6 eight one-hundredths of a percent for consideration on annuity contracts
7 exceeding five hundred thousand dollars;

8 (3) On each insurer not licensed or not authorized to do business in this state, ~~two~~ the
9 rate shall be computed as follows:

10 **(a)** Two and one-half percent of premiums and one for a life policy on the first one
11 hundred thousand dollars of premium, and eight one-hundredths of a percent
12 for premiums on life policies exceeding one hundred thousand dollars; and one

13 **(b)** One and one-fourth percent of the consideration for annuity contracts on the
14 first five hundred thousand dollars of consideration for annuity, and eight one-
15 hundredths of a percent for consideration on annuity contracts exceeding five
16 hundred thousand dollars;

17 (4) Fourteen dollars for each insurance policy issued or renewed for workers'
18 compensation coverage.

19 Revenue from subdivision (4) of this section shall be deposited in the insurance operating
20 fund of the state treasury and is dedicated to the Department of Labor for purposes of
21 automating the administration of the workers' compensation law and supporting the Workers'
22 Compensation Advisory Council.

23 Section 2. That § 58-6-70 be amended to read as follows:

24 58-6-70. If any other state or foreign country imposes any taxes, licenses, and other fees, in

1 the aggregate, or fines, penalties, deposit requirements, or other material obligations,
2 prohibitions, or restrictions upon South Dakota insurers, or upon the agents or representatives
3 of such insurers, which are, pursuant to the laws of that other state or country, in excess of those
4 directly imposed upon similar insurers, or upon the agents or representatives of such insurers,
5 of that other state or country under the statutes of this state, then, so long as the laws of that
6 other state or country continue in force or are so applied, the director of the Division of
7 Insurance shall impose the same taxes, licenses, and other fees, in the aggregate, or fines,
8 penalties, deposit requirements, or other material obligations, prohibitions, or restrictions of
9 whatever kind upon the insurers, or upon the agents or representatives of the insurers, of the
10 other state or country doing business or seeking to do business in South Dakota. Any tax,
11 license, or other fee or obligation imposed on South Dakota insurers or their agents or
12 representatives by any first or second class municipality, county, or other political subdivision
13 or agency of the other state or country is considered to be imposed by such state or country
14 within the meaning of this section. The time and period of payment of the retaliatory tax is the
15 same, in all cases, as that of the gross premiums tax provided for in § 10-44-2. No interest
16 charges or credits may be made or allowed for the use or loss of the use of funds due to any
17 difference in the time or period of payment used in this state and the time or period used in a
18 foreign state or country.

19 This provision does not apply to life policies where the total first year premium is equal to
20 or greater than one million dollars and to annuity contracts where the total first year
21 consideration is equal to or greater than one million dollars.

22 Section 3. That § 58-15-17 be amended to read as follows:

23 58-15-17. In the case of policies issued on or after the operative date specified in § 58-15-42,
24 the loan value referred to in § 58-15-15 ~~shall~~ may be as low at zero percent or as high as one

1 hundred percent of the cash surrender value at the end of the current policy year as required by
2 § 58-15-33. The policy shall reserve to the insurer the right to defer the granting of a loan, other
3 than for the payment of any premium to the insurer, for six months after application therefor.

4 Section 4. That § 58-15-26 be amended to read as follows:

5 58-15-26. There shall be a provision that when a policy ~~shall become~~ becomes a claim by the
6 death of the insured, settlement shall be made upon receipt of due proof of death and, at the
7 insurer's option, surrender of the policy ~~and/or or~~ or proof of the interest of the claimant, or both.
8 If an insurer shall specify a particular period prior to the expiration of which settlement shall be
9 made, such period ~~shall~~ may not exceed two months from the receipt of such proof. For policies
10 where the cash surrender value pursuant to § 58-15-33 is in excess of one million dollars at the
11 date of death, settlement may be made in cash or by distributing assets of the separate account
12 to the claimant with the previous consent of the policyholder.

13 Section 5. That § 58-15-26.2 be amended to read as follows:

14 58-15-26.2. Interest payable pursuant to § 58-15-26.1 shall be computed from the date of
15 death of the insured until the date of payment and shall be at the rate of four percent per annum
16 or not less than the current rate of interest on death proceeds left on deposit with the insurer
17 under an interest settlement option, whichever rate is greater. For policies where the cash
18 surrender value pursuant to § 58-15-33 is in excess of one million dollars at the date of death,
19 and with the consent of the policyholder, the interest shall be computed sixty days succeeding
20 the date of death of the insured until the date proof of death has been received by the insurer in
21 good order until the date of payment.

22 Section 6. That § 58-15-33 be amended to read as follows:

23 58-15-33. Any cash surrender value available under the policy in the event of default in a
24 premium payment due on any policy anniversary, whether or not required by § 58-15-31 shall

1 be an amount not less than the excess, if any, of the present value on such anniversary, of the
2 future guaranteed benefits which would have been provided for by the policy, including any
3 existing paid-up additions, if there had been no default, over the sum of the then present value
4 of the adjusted premiums as defined in §§ 58-15-35 to 58-15-38, inclusive, and §§ 58-15-43.1
5 to 58-15-43.11, inclusive, corresponding to premiums which would have fallen due on and after
6 such anniversary, and the amount of any indebtedness to the insurer on the policy. Any cash
7 surrender value available within thirty days after any policy anniversary under any policy paid up
8 by completion of all premium payments or any policy continued under any paid-up nonforfeiture
9 benefit, whether or not required by § 58-15-31, shall be an amount not less than the present
10 value, on such anniversary, of the future guaranteed benefits provided for by the policy, including
11 any existing paid-up additions, decreased by any indebtedness to the insurer on the policy.

12 However, for any policy issued on or after the operative date of §§ 58-15-43.1 to
13 58-15-43.11, inclusive, which provides supplemental life insurance or annuity benefits at the
14 option of the insured and for an identifiable additional premium by rider or supplemental policy
15 provision, the cash surrender value referred to in the first paragraph of this section shall be an
16 amount not less than the sum of the cash surrender value as defined in that paragraph for an
17 otherwise similar policy issued at the same age without a rider or supplemental policy provision
18 and the cash surrender value as defined in that paragraph for a policy which provides only the
19 benefits otherwise provided by a rider or supplemental policy provision.

20 Further, for any family policy issued on or after the operative date of §§ 58-15-43.1 to
21 58-15-43.11, inclusive, which defines a primary insured and provides term insurance on the life
22 of the spouse of the primary insured expiring before the spouse's age seventy-one, the cash
23 surrender value referred to in the first paragraph of this section shall be an amount not less than
24 the sum of the cash surrender value as defined in that paragraph for an otherwise similar policy

1 issued at the same age without term insurance on the life of the spouse and the cash surrender
2 value as defined in that paragraph for a policy which provides only the benefits otherwise
3 provided by term insurance on the life of the spouse.

4 Any cash surrender value available within thirty days after any policy anniversary under any
5 policy paid-up by completion of all premium payments or any policy continued under any paid-up
6 nonforfeiture benefit, whether or not required by § 58-15-31, shall be an amount not less than
7 the present value, on such anniversary of the future guaranteed benefits provided for by the
8 policy, including any existing paid-up additions, decreased by any indebtedness to the insurer on
9 the policy.

10 If the cash surrender value is in excess of one million dollars, the term, cash surrender value,
11 includes payment of assets to the policyholder as well as payment of cash with the previous
12 consent of the policyholder.

13 Section 7. That § 58-15-46 be amended to read as follows:

14 58-15-46. A policy which contains any exclusion or restriction pursuant to § 58-15-45 shall
15 also provide that in the event of death under the circumstances to which any such exclusion or
16 restriction is applicable, the insurer will return all premiums received under the policy with
17 adjustment for indebtedness and dividend credits. If the policy is a variable policy, the insurer
18 shall only be required to return all premiums received under the policy with adjustment for
19 indebtedness and adjustment to reflect the investment experience of the separate account.